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�1st Circuit upholds forfeiture of Puerto Rican lottery tickets brought in from the Virgin Islands. (175) U.S. Customs law, 19 U.S.C. §1305, prohibits importing lot�tery tickets into the United States from any foreign coun�try. On two occasions, a licensed Puerto Rican lottery agent brought winning Puerto Rican lottery tickets from the Virgin Islands into Puerto Rico for redemption, where they were confiscated by Customs agents. The First Circuit upheld the seizure and denied the claimant’s petition for a writ of mandamus compelling institution of judicial forfeiture proceedings. The definition of “United States” in the act specifically excludes the U.S. Virgin Islands. Therefore, the Virgin Islands are a foreign country for purposes of the act. Moreover, the ban on importation of lottery tickets extends to all such tickets, whether winning or not. Couvertier v. Bonar, 173 F.3d 450 (1st Cir. 1999).�xe "Couvertier v. Bonar, 173 F.3d 450 (1st Cir. 1999)."�





2nd Circuit finds gambling ships’ “voyages to nowhere” need only sail three miles offshore. (175) The Gambling Ship Act, 18 U.S.C. §§1081-82 permits gambling on U.S. flagged vessels which return to port within 24 hours of embarkation and conduct their gambling activities “beyond the territorial waters of the United States,” as that term is defined in a particular section of the Internal Revenue Code. The Code section referenced a regulation, which defined territorial waters as three miles from shore. The Antiterrorism and Effective Death Penalty Act of 1996 (AEDPA) expanded the territorial waters of the U.S. for purposes of criminal jurisdiction from three to twelve miles. The government thereafter seized a gambling device (“one Big Six Wheel”) from a gambling ship cruising between three and twelve miles offshore, and claimed that the AEDPA effective�y amended the Gambling Ship Act to require gambling cruise ships to sail at least twelve miles offshore before letting the good times roll. The Second Circuit disagreed, finding that the Gambling Ship Act defined “territorial waters” by reference to a specific revenue statute as written as of a particular date. There being no indication that the general jurisdictional expansion of U.S. territorial waters in the AEDPA was intended to change the conditions of operation of gambling ships, the court dismissed the case. U.S. v. One Big Six Wheel, 166 F.3d 498 (2d Cir. 1999).�xe "U.S. v. One Big Six Wheel, 166 F.3d 498 (2d Cir. 1999)."�





4th Circuit holds ban on excessive fines applies to forfeitures under gambling statute. (175) Claimants argued that the forfeiture of their residence under 18 U.S.C. §§981 and 1955(d) in connection with illegal gambling, was barred by the 8th Amendment's ban on excessive fines. The 4th Circuit held that the ban applied to in rem forfeitures and that the district court erred in failing to decide whether the forfeiture of the residence was excessive. In Austin v. U.S., 509 U.S. 602 (1993), the Supreme Court held that the ban on excessive fines applied to in rem forfeiture of drug-related property under 21 U.S.C. §881. The Court found that Congress intended an 881 forfeiture to serve a punitive purpose by tying forfeiture directly to the commission of drug offenses. Likewise, Congress intended forfeiture under §§981 and 1955 to serve punitive purposes. Thus, the reasoning of Austin applied here. U.S. v. Taylor, 13 F.3d 786 (4th Cir. 1994).�xe "U.S. v. Taylor, 13 F.3d 786 (4th Cir. 1994)."�





6th Circuit says stock purchased with money from “clean” line of credit forfeit�able. (175) Defendant was convicted of gambling and money laundering offenses, and the jury returned a criminal forfeiture verdict against certain stock owned by defendant, who purchased it with funds drawn from a line of credit. Defendant claimed that the line of credit was “clean” in that it was essentially a loan of bank funds with no connection to illegal gambling proceeds. The Sixth Circuit held that the defendant used the line of credit like a checking account – he drew upon it and then repaid the draws with deposits, often of large sums of (presumptively gambling-derived) cash. Thus, use of the line of credit was a money laundering transaction, and the government met its burden of showing the nexus between illegal activity and the stock to be forfeited. U.S. v. Hill, 167 F.3d 1055 (6th Cir. 1999).�xe "U.S. v. Hill, 167 F.3d 1055 (6th Cir. 1999)."�





7th Circuit upholds forfeiture of real property under gam�bling forfeiture statute. (175) Claimant argued that 18 U.S.C. §1955(d), which provides for the for�feiture of "any property" used in violation of the federal anti-gambling statute, does not provide for the forfeiture of real property. The 7th Circuit rejected this argument, finding the term "all property" encompassed both real and personal property. Although in 1984 Congress amended several other forfeiture statutes to clarify that they included real property, and did not so amend the gambling forfeiture statute, claim�ant's ar�gument that this evidenced Con�gres�sional intent to exclude real property from the gambling forfeiture statute amounted to "speculation." U.S. v. On Leong Chinese Mer�chants Asso�ciation Building, 918 F.2d 1289 (7th Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. On Leong Chinese Mer�chants Asso�ciation Building, 918 F.2d 1289 (7th Cir. 1990)."�





9th Circuit upholds forfeiture of Indian gaming machines. (175) The Shoalwater Bay Indian Tribe owned and operated 108 gambling machines at its casino in southwest Washington State. However, the federal government seized the machines and filed an in rem forfeiture action against them pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§1175, 1177. The machines were alleged to be operating in violation of the Johnson Act, to which the Tribe responded that they fell within an exception for Indian gaming that is: (1) operated pursuant to a negotiated Tribal-State compact, and (2) permitted by law within the state within which the reservation is located. 25 U.S.C. §2701(d). Here, there was no Tribal-State compact, and the machines at issue were not legal for anyone to operate under Washington state law. Hence, the forfeiture was proper. [Ed. Note: The court also remanded two other Indian gaming cases from Washington in which the district court had not determined whether the seized machines were legal for any person to operate under Washington state law. See, U.S. v. The Spokane Tribe of Indians, 1999 WL 1269341 (9th Cir. Dec. 27, 1999), and U.S. v. confederated Tribes of the Colville Reservation, 1999 WL 1269335 (9th Cir. Dec. 28, 1999).] U.S. v. Shoalwater Bay Indian Tribe, 1999 WL 1269343 (9th Cir. 1999) (unpublished).�xe "U.S. v. Shoalwater Bay Indian Tribe, 1999 WL 1269343 (9th Cir. 1999) (unpublished)."�





11th Circuit reaffirms that Excessive Fines Clause is applicable to civil in rem gambling forfeitures. (175) Certain language in Justice Thomas’ opinion in U.S. v. Bajakajian, 118 S.Ct. 2028, 2036 (1998), raised doubts about whether the Excessive Fines Clause of the Eighth Amendment is applicable to modern civil in rem forfeitures. See, e.g., U.S. v. Real Property Known and Numbered as 415 E. Mitchell Ave., 149 F.3d 472, 477 n.3 (6th Cir. 1998). In this gambling forfeiture case, the Eleventh Circuit noted the uncertainty, but relied on its prior opinion in U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 18755 North Bay Road, 13 F.3d 1493 (11th Cir. 1994), to conclude that the Excessive Fines Clause does apply to civil forfeitures under 18 U.S.C. §1955. U.S. v. Land, Winston County, 163 F.3d 1295 (11th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. Land, Winston County, 163 F.3d 1295 (11th Cir. 1998)."�





11th Circuit says civil forfeiture suit seeking property used in gambling was not barred by double jeopardy. (175) Claimant was convicted of running an illegal gambling business from his home. He argued that a civil in rem forfeiture action against the home under 18 U.S.C. §1955 was barred by the double jeopardy clause. The 11th Circuit found no double jeopardy violation. The government's simultaneous pursuit of criminal and civil sanctions against defendant, under 18 U.S.C. §1955, fell within the contours of a single, coordinated prosecution. U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 18755 North Bay Road, Miami, 13 F.3d 1493 (11th Cir. 1994).


�xe "U.S. v. One Single Family Residence Located at 18755 North Bay Road, Miami, 13 F.3d 1493 (11th Cir. 1994)."�


California District Court determines elec�tronic bingo game not forfeitable under Indian Gaming Act. (175) The government sought forfeiture of 101 gambling machines. The machines ran a game called “Mega�Mania,” which permits players at Indian gambling facilities across the country to participate in a single, large, linked simultaneous bingo game. The Indian Gaming Regulatory Act, 25 U.S.C. §2701, et seq., permits bingo games or games substantially similar to bingo to be played on reservations without permission from or compact with any outside authority. However, operation of most other gaming devices, such as slot machines, is not permitted on reservations without a tribal-state compact. The government contended that the MegaMania machines are more like slot machines than bingo. The district court concluded that, despite their electronic form, these machines were in essence a form of bingo and thus permissible on the reservation without outside agreement. The machines were not forfeitable. U.S. v. 103 Electronic Gambling Devices, 1998 WL 827586 (N.D. Cal. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).





Massachusetts District Court holds that gambling proceeds, but not real property used to promote the gambling business, are subject to money laundering forfeiture. (175) Defendant pleaded guilty to gambling and money laundering charges, and in his plea agreement the government agreed to a bench trial as to whether real property and various funds were subject to forfeiture as “involved in” the money laundering conspiracy. The District of Massachusetts district court found that any property “involved in” the particular financial transaction involving gambling proceeds would be subject to forfeiture pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 982(a)(2). This case contains a detailed factual and legal analysis of the provisions of the money laundering statute, including what constitutes “promotion” and “concealment.” The D.Mass. district court ordered to be forfeited $384,245 of gambling proceeds, but not the real property used to promote his gambling business. U.S. v. Iacaboni, 221 F.Supp.2d 104 (D. Mass. 2002).


